ar

Form ADM. 012

MEMO NEW JERSEY STATE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
TO Richard Barker, Regional Superintendent DATE _June 5, 1989
FROM James R. Apffel, Superintendent | nﬁi(z
U‘\l N
SUBJECT State Park Histories

Attached is a history of Washington Crossing State Park.
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WASHINGTON CROS3SING STATE PARK




" INTRODUCTION

Washington Crossing 3tate Park ié located in Mercer County about
elrht miles north of Trenton along the Delaware fdver,

It was hege the Revolutlonary Army crossed the Delaware on Chrigt-
mas night 1776 preceeding the Battle of Trenton,

Today the park extends one mile east of the riverbank and contains
807 acres, It serves a variety of uses with its picnic areas, historic
areas, nature center and Open Alr Theater,
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ESTABLI SHMENT OF A PARK

A commlttee of the Knlghts of Columbus held a public meeting in
Trenton in 1909, At this meeting a resolution was passed that Covernor
Fort appoint a commission for the purpose of properly marking-the point
where Washington crossed the Delaware.. The movement for establishing such
a memorial offieially began in 1910 with the establishment of the commission,
Tn 1912 the first land--100 acres of the Blackwell estate~-was purchased,
In 1914 the functions of the commission were mersped into the Department
of Conservation and Development which enlarged and developed thu project,

The original park was to be on both the Ponnsylvania and New Joersey
slden of the Delaware, not less than % mile along the Delaware River
and extchding at least a quarter mile inland from the River on the New
Jersey slde. The park was set up so the historic areas wouldn't
be cluttered with recreational facilities, Included in the plans was
the purchase of the Ferry House, the erection of a monumemt in the park,
landscaping and road construction, and use as a national military camp-
ground,



LAND ACQUISITIONS ' _ i.-‘.:.' :

Originally the area was the campground of the Lenni Lenapl and
Delaware Indians, Later it was settled Ly farmers from England and A
the European mainland,

The tirst record of anyone owanlng the land was in 1699 when Rut
Johnson acquired acoresage of lui.( bordering the Nelaware and north of
present day Route 546 and south of what is uow called Belle Mountain.

The land was hequeathed to his son, Garrett in 1749, Garrett established
a ferry and tavern on the south boundﬁry (Nelson House), When he died
in 1766, his sou, Rut, received the southern part of the land lnoluding’
the ferry and tavern, The land also im Tuded some acreage east of thim
(our Ferry House and Flag Museum). ,'ﬁ-
~In the 1770's Johngon's eatate was sold to pay creditoxs. 1t '
went through several hands until in the 1840's Nelson acquired the part
of the land whaxe the Nelaon House now stands, Tn 1903 Isidor Strittun;or‘
bought another part of the Johnson land (where our present day Ferxy
House and Flag Museum are). The last part of the Jshnson tract was
purchased by Blaokwsll in 1913.?ﬁ S Tl s w o annresh e
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By 1925 all of thls land was purchased by the state.

Between 1925 and 1928 approximately 68 acres were purchased in
ihe area that is now Gresn Grove, Sullivan .aove, Visitor's Center
field, and the area of Continental Lane near Bear Tavern. Most of the
land was purchased from lavinson, Boscarell and Dabenski,

In the late 1930's and eaxly 1940%s 80 acres were bought from the
First Mechanlcs National Bank, _ .

After these purchases, no land was acquired until 1963 whén with the
help of the Greon Acres Program approximately 480 acres were acquired.
Among the property the park purchased was the Wolre tract by what is
now the Open ALx inheater, Niederer land with the pond and barns still
present, Phillips Farm along Brickyard Road, and the Idppincott and
Harbourt House where the Nature Center now is,

The property that was last acquired is known as Cedar Bliss., The -
Franksel tract wa s purchased in the uarly 1970's, IRREAE
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BEAR TAVERN

Bear Tavern was bullt in 1740, It was a stopping place for farmers
taking goods w Trgnton. It was the apot to which Washington marched
after orossing the Delawure before turning to Trenton., It had many

' owners until it beocame » farm, It was turned over to the state aa
_ part of Weshington Crossing State Park at the dedication ceiemonies
on June 6, 1926, ,  ;é o ' 5} 13'*ﬁ§
The building ie now used for the park ﬁeqdquartere:where.the public “ ;

can obtain inforwstion and permits,

_ VISITORS CLATKR

- Thie building was established in 1976 to facilitate the bnrk'a

/

ok

historie 1ntorprot§tion. It oontains a nusewn of the Anivrioan Revolution,
1 a multi-media elegtric map explaining the ten dayu, and to ilmpart

information, There are st room racilities, , ' .

The Visitors' Center at Washington Crossina State Park located at Titusville,
- New Jersey, a]though:opened to the public for less than one dozen years, has earned
a reputation nationwide for its quality collections of the American Revolutionary

. War period in American history, One of the very few military collection in the
nation featuring a hroad~based collection of »are original artifacts carriad by
the citizen soldier durina America's Ffirst civil war, 1t is distinctive in its .
chronoloaical arrancement of artifacts dating from the perioc of the. French and :
: Indian War through the presidential term of Georae Washinoton, llost similar
: col1ect10nstre arranned thematically rather than in a chrenolonical seauence,
# Viawina this collection affords the visitor a clear comnrzhension of America's
revolutionarv conflict and emphasizes the sacrifices of our foundina fathers
which previde America with its cherished frecdoms, Almost three-quarters of the
Pevolutionary Yar was fousht in New Jersev with feneral Washinqton and his Contine

§ antal Arry spending one-third of their time during the conflict in tew Jersey!
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The North museum dallery seen upon anterino the Visitors' Center from tho
North parking lot features artifacts associnted with America's first crisis of
1776 -and particularly those addressinn the "Ten Crucial Days" hetweon Necember
25th, 1776 and January 3rd, 1777. Arranged chronolonically, this aallerv in-
cludes weapons, written and printed documents, uniform accessories and camo
equipment used by the Americans, British and Hessian troovs, Hichliahted in a
center case are the original pistols of the Pennsylvania Signer of the Declara-
tion, George Taylor, the saddle hans of Cantain Dantel firay of the Hunterdon
County, New Jersey, militia and the original military order that permitted Gen-
eral Washington te secure the Durham and ferry hoats for his first miittary vic-
tory at Trenton on Necember 26th, 17761

The South museum gallery features a collection of orlginal Revolutionary
War era artifacts associated with Mew Jersey's role during the conflict from 1758
until. the Treaty of Paris in 1783, Included are weavnons, uniform accessories,
military equipmant, documents, maps and printed material pertainino to the Amer-
ican, French, British and Geman troops that saw service during the Revolutionary
War, This phase of the collection is arrvanmed chronoloaically with twelve his-
toric themes as follows:

Prelude to Revolution: 1768 ~ 1773
»oo- Provincial Legislatures Act: 1774 - 1776
fmerican Military Reacts: 1775
Pre]yde to Independence: 1778
Déc1arat1on of Independence: 1776
American Crisis Humber One: 1776
War Comes to the Middle States: 1777,
Weapons of Warfare: 1775 - 1783
Valley Forge to Monmguth: 1777 - 1778
Middlehrook to Morristown: 1778 - 1780
War Concludes in the South: 1780 - 1781

Results of the Pevolution: 1781 - 1783
.‘/ ' N
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contury.

FRRRY HOUZE

The Ferxry House is an old restored tavern that was once thought
to be the place where Washington and hin statt officexrs met to dinmcuss .
plans for their attack on Trenton, It was known for ovexr 50 yuars as
the ﬁcKonkoy Fexrry House, However, resoearch no# shows that the McKonkeys
never owned land on the New Jersoey uside of the Delaware River., The
original owner and operator of the Ferry Housa was Garrett Johnson who
inherited the land from his father, Rut, The original home contained
what 48 now the tap room, the kitohen, and the loft., Garrett enlarged =~
1t in about 1767 to include six other rooms. At the time of the Rev~ B
olutionary War, the ferry was known as Johnson's Ferry. although 1t was
run by James dlack. o

When Strittmater purchased the house, it was in an advanced utato ;:1
of disrepaltr, Hnoe he wae interested in Washingtonla, he restored and -
repaired the house, He worked hard to convince the State of New Jetuey
of the historic significance of the site, . N

After the state purchased tho land and building, they renovated it.
They alao purochased the museun's collection of 18th century furniture,
utonuila; and weapons for the opening in lyg6. Only three rooms were -
furnished historically. The other six rooms were used for storage
and to house the caxeiakex. .

After a robbery and the retirement of the caretiaker, & sophisticated
alars systom replaced the need for a live-in caretaker., Because of this,
the State of New Jerasey is presently making plans for the renovation of
the old living quarters in order to make the entire house open to the
publio.

Although the house is stlll furnished as @ tavern, hiatoriana novw bew
lisve that the Ferry House was probwbly the homestead of the Johnson
plantation and the Helson House was actually the Ferry Tavern of the 18th
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NELSON HOUSE

During the Hevolution this house was the ferry and tuavern where

Washington and his men met after the Crossing on December 25~26, 1776,

" In the 18K0'e, after it was purchased by Alysiyn neluon, it was a
22-room hotel, In the early 1900's 1t was struck by & steel beam

~Trom a paseing traln,

The Nolaoﬁ Housa was Loyn down to ita ﬁreaent stature ip the 1930';.
It 1s open for public viewing during the Spring, Summer, snd Fall, It
is manned by_stafr who wvers hirea‘by the Washington Crossing Asa¢oiation,
Time and hours are as posted, |

B FLAG MUSEUM

Thia builﬂinslwus onos part of the Johnaoh fivine  The building,
renovatediin the 19%0's, onoe houved a drafting room for the Trenton
Park Dovalomm't. staff, The original meetings of the Waohington Crusaing
Association were held in the building, Thié Asgociotion, which consiste
of local residents interested in developing lhe park, established the
Flag Museum in 1963, Originally, it contsined flags and wags used to show
historic movies, Presently, thls structure is closed to the publiv, due

to renovatioun,

Starting alongaide this building is & puth known us Continental Lane,

Extandiné one.miie into the parik, 1t is the psih whioh Genspal Washington

‘and his army took to Lrenton before the Battle,
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OPEN AIR THEATER
The CAT wae watublished by the Washington Croaﬁing Asgociation in 1964
tor outoobr performanoes, The light shnek wis. comstructod by park personnel,
while the concession stand and baok stage buildings were built by members
of the Associstion, The first performance was held in the swmier of 1964
to oolobr;to e New Jersey Tercentenary, Tho procecds oi' the shows are
Used 0 muke improvementis on the theater after the cost of performances

are paid, Uarlier activities invluded conoerts while the more regent

- ewphasis bas Leen on plays and musioals,

NATURE CENTER
The Nature Center was establishea in 1964 after the acquliaition of
the Harbowry Houws, The genter oonsisted of displuys with nature trails,
In 1967 the Nature Center was moved to Lhe present location in the
Lippincott House where the display urea was enlarged and more trails added,
‘At the Nature Center, park visitors have the opportunity to obhserve
small exhibite, lieten to brief leotures, or go on & nnture urs There is s

bird blind for observing the many different speoivs of birds that arrive
iroughout the year,

\'\




QEMWARE & RARITAN CANAL
The oanal, which runs for 66 miles along the Uelawsre Kiver, was

establishied in 1838, It was used for barges pulled by animals that
walked along its banke,

The D & R canal used to be under the jurisdiction of washington

Crossing State.Park but in 1974.1t beoame & state park Ly iteelf, Today

it 19 used moetly for oanoeing and fishing. '
i
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GEOLOGY & WLLDLIFE

The Washington Crossing area 1s located within a basin that was
formed as a result of faulting. The area then gradually was fllled with
sediments eroded down from the sides of the basin and deposited by "
streams and rivers, donsequantly. the area contains mostly sedimentary
rocks-red & black shales dfid coarse conglomerates, _

The region is characterized by round hills and broad valleys,

Part of the area is in a flood plain.§

The only surface water is the Delaware River, There are two small
streams in the park, but these are subjoct to seasonal coqditions.

Originally the vegetation was deqiduous. but now 1t is about 50%
evergreen,

The wildlife in Washington Grossing State Park consists of deer,
small game animals, and birds, There is fishlife in the Delaware and
Raritan Canal and in the Delaware River, |

PICNIC AREAS

Y
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Through the efforts of Work Project Administration in the late 1940's

and the 1930's, many areas of the park wore landscaped and beautified,
This included the plenic areas of Green Grove, Sullivan Grove, and '
Washington Grove. The areas then were favorite spots for family picnices,

new Grove, Knox Crove, was added in the 1970'a,
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QLPTS TO THE PALK

Throughout the years since the park opened, many glfts have been
presented to 1t, Barly donatioas include the Colonial Ferry House c oy
Gaxden, & replica of {he gardens at Mt, Vernon, donated by the Daughtexrs
of the American Revolution in 1926, Also included was the Honeyman
Meaorlal Fountain near the river., It was donated by the New Jersey
Patriotio Order Sons of America in 1930 in memory of John Honeyman
Who served Washington and the Continental Army as a spy. The most
signifionnt of the private ocontributions was the (ieorge Washington _
Memorial Arborteus donated by Charles Lathrop Pack and Arthur Newton =
Pack in 1932 to commemorats the 200th anniversary of the tdrthday of L |
Geoxge Washington, It contains trees and shrubs native to New Jexrsoy., _,' o
Moat of the recent contritutions to the Park have been to the Na.turc ‘
Conter and Outdoor Theater,
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EMERY HEROISM INFORMATION

On July 14, 1986, a boating accident occurred
on the waters of the Delaware River approximately
one mile north of Washington Crossing State Park.
The boat, containing eight people, capsized leaving
six children ranging in age from 4 to 11 years,
clinging to the craft approximately 70 yards from
shore.

Ranger Emery, disregarding his own personal
safety, entered the water along with officers from
Hopewell Township Police Departnmient, and assisted in
transferring the children from the capsized boat to
safety on the shore.

Two adults, parents of three of the children,
drowned as a result of the accident. The victims,
Donald and Susan Hujber, operated an ice cream and
luncheonette business on Route 29, adjacent to the
park,



